UNIVERSITY OF MAURITIUS

FACULTY OF AGRICULTURE

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTION & SYSTEMS (APS)

Assessment of Water, Sediment and Fish quality in a Barachois for a potential mariculture project

BY

JAHAZEEAH Yashveen

1512540

A project submitted in partial fulfillment for the award degree of

BSc (Hons) Agriscience and Aquaculture Technology

APRIL 2018

Table of Contents

List of F	ïguresvi
List of ta	vii vii
Acknow	ledgementviii
Abstract	
List of A	bbreviationsxi
1. Intr	oduction1
1.1.	Introduction1
1.2.	Hypothesis
1.3.	Aim
1.4.	Objectives
2. Lite	arature Review
2.1.	Aquaculture
2.2.	Site description
2.3.	Erosion from agricultural land 4
2.4.	Pollution
2.5.	River mouth
2.6.	Nitrogen cycle
2.7.	Phosphorus Cycle
2.8.	Carbon cycle
2.9.	The sulfur cycle
2.10.	Heavy metals
2.10	0.1. Cadmium
2.10	9.2. Chromium
2.10	9.3. Copper
2.10	9.4. Manganese
2.10	9.5. Nickel
3. Met	hodology10
3.1. Si	te selection10
3.2. Sa	mpling
3.2.	1. Water sampling 10
3.2.2	2. Sediment collection

	3.2.3. Fish collection	11
	3.3. Preparation of samples for testing	11
	3.3.1. Water sample	11
	3.3.2. Sediment	11
	3.3.3. Fish	11
	3.4. Water tests	12
	3.4.1. pH of water	12
	3.4.2. Salinity of water	12
	3.4.3. Nitrates in water	12
	3.4.4. Phosphate in water	12
	3.4.5. Heavy metals in water	13
	3.5. Sediment analysis	13
	3.5.1. Salinity analysis	13
	3.5.2. Determination of Total Nitrogen in sediments	13
	3.5.2.1. Digestion	13
	3.5.2.2. Distillation	13
	3.5.2.3. Titration	14
	3.5.3. Determination of available phosphorus in sediments	14
	3.5.3.1. Preparation of ammonium molybdate	14
	3.5.3.2. Preparation of ascorbic acid	14
	3.5.3.3. Preparation of standard phosphate solution	14
	3.5.3.4. Extraction of phosphorus from sediments	15
	3.5.4. Determination of organic carbon	15
	3.5.4.1. Preparation of standard	15
	3.5.4.2. Sample preparation and analysis	15
	3.5.4.3. Heavy metals in sediments	16
	3.6. Fish test	16
	3.6.1. Heavy metals in fish	16
	3.6.1.1. Ashing of fish	16
	3.6.1.2. Digestion of ashes of fish	16
4.	Results	17
4	4.1. Water sample	17
ii		

4.1.1. pH of water samples	17
4.1.2. Salinity in water	
4.1.3. Nitrates in water	19
4.1.4. Phosphates in water	21
4.1.5. Heavy metals in water	22
4.1.5.1. Cadmium	22
4.1.5.2. Chromium	23
4.1.5.3. Copper	24
4.1.5.4. Manganese	25
4.1.5.5. Nickel	26
4.2. Sediments	27
4.2.1. Sediment pH	27
4.2.2. Salinity of sediments	
4.2.3. Available phosphorus in sediments	29
4.2.5. Organic Carbon in sediments	
4.2.6. Heavy metals in sediment sample	
4.2.6.1. Cadmium	
4.2.6.2. Chromium	
4.2.6.3. Copper	
4.2.6.4. Manganese	35
4.2.6.5. Nickel	
4.3. Fish samples	
4.3.1. Cadmium	
4.3.2. Chromium	
4.3.3. Copper	
4.3.4. Manganese	
4.3.5. Nickel	
5. Discussion	
5.1. Water	
5.1.1. Analysis of pH of seawater between different sites	
5.1.2. Analysis of salinity of seawater between different sites	
5.1.3. Analysis of Nitrates and Phosphates in seawater between different site	es44
iii	

5.1.4. Analysis of heavy metals in sea water between different Sites	45
5.1.4.1. Cadmium	45
5.1.4.2. Chromium	45
5.1.4.3. Copper	45
5.1.4.4. Manganese	45
5.1.4.5. Nickel	46
5.2. Sediments	46
5.2.1. Analysis of pH of sediments between different sites	46
5.2.2. Analysis of salinity of sediments between different sites	46
5.2.3. Analysis of Available Phosphorus, Total nitrogen and Organic carbon in sediments between different sites	47
5.2.4	47
5.2.4.1. Cadmium	47
5.2.4.2. Chromium	48
5.2.4.3. Copper	48
5.2.4.4. Manganese	48
5.2.4.5. Nickel	49
5.3. Analysis of heavy metals in Fish samples between different Sites	49
5.3.1. Cadmium in fish	49
5.3.2. Chromium in Fish	49
5.3.3. Copper in Fish	49
5.3.4. Manganese in Fish	50
5.3.5. Nickel in Fish	50
6. Conclusion	51
7. Recommendation	52
8. References	53
9. Appendix 1 (results) Error! Bookmark not define	d.
9.1. Water sample Error! Bookmark not define	d.
9.1.1. pHError! Bookmark not define	d.
9.1.2. Salinity in water Error! Bookmark not define	d.
9.2. SedimentsError! Bookmark not define	d.
9.2.3. pH for sediments Brror! Bookmark not define	d.

9.2.2. Salinity in sediments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
9.2.3. Total nitrogen	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10. Appendix 2 (Anova results)	. Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1. Water	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.1. pH of water	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.2. Salinity in water	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.3. Nitrates in water	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.4. Phosphates in water	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.5. Heavy metals in water	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.5.1. Chromium	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.5.2. Copper	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.5.3. Manganese	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.1.5.4. Nickel	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2. Sediments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.1. pH in sediments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.2. Salinity in sediments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.3. Available phosphorus in sediments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.4. Total nitrogen in sediments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.5. Organic carbon in sediments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.6. Heavy metals in sediments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.6.1. Cadmium	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.6.2. Chromium	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.6.3. Copper	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.6.4. Manganese	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.2.6.5. Nickel	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.3. Fish samples	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.3.1. Cadium	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.3.2. Chromium	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.3.3. Copper	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.3.4. Manganese	Error! Bookmark not defined.
10.3.5. Nickel	Error! Bookmark not defined.
11. Appendix 3 (Synopsis)	. Error! Bookmark not defined.
V	

List of Figures

Figure 1: pH of water	17
Figure 2: Salinity in water	
Figure 3: Concentration of nitrates in water	19
Figure 4: Concentration of phosphate in water	
Figure 5: Concentration of chromium in water	23
Figure 6: Concentration of copper in water	24
Figure 7: Concentration of manganese in water	25
Figure 8: Concentration of nickel in water	
Figure 9: pH of sediments	27
Figure 10: Salinity of sediments	
Figure 11: Concentration of available phosphorus in water	
Figure 12: Concentration of total nitrogen in sediments	
Figure 13: Concentration of organic carbon in sediments	
Figure 14: Concentration of Cadmium in sediments	
Figure 15: Concentration of Chromium in sediments	
Figure 16: Concentration of copper in sediments	
Figure 17: Concentration of manganese in sediments	
Figure 18: Concentration of nickel in sediments	
Figure 19: Concentration of Chromium in fish	
Figure 20: Concentration of copper in fish	
Figure 21: Concentration of manganese in fish	41
Figure 22: Concentration of nickel in fish	

List of Tables

Table 1: pH of water	17
Table 2: Salinity in water	18
Table 3: Concentration of nitrates in water	19
Table 4: Concentration of phosphate in water	21
Table 5: Concentration of cadmium in water	22
Table 6: Concentration of chromium in water	23
Table 7: Concentration of copper in water	24
Table 8: Concentration of manganese in water	25
Table 9: Concentration of nickel in water	26
Table 10: pH of sediments	27
Table 11: Salinity of sediments	28
Table 12: Concentration of available phosphorus in sediments	29
Table 13: Concentration of total nitrogen in sediments	30
Table 14: Concentration of organic carbon in sediments	31
Table 15: Concentration of cadmium in sediments	32
Table 16: Concentration of Chromium in sediments	33
Table 17: Concentration of copper in sediments	34
Table 18: Concentration of manganese in sediments	35
Table 19: Concentration of nickel in sediments	36
Table 20: Concentration of cadmium in fish	38
Table 21: Concentration of Chromium in fish	39
Table 22: Concentration of copper in fish	40
Table 23: Concentration of manganese in fish	41
Table 24: Concentration of nickel in fish	42

Acknowledgement

For the completion of my project, first of all I will like to thank God for the courage and patience that I had during this project. Then I have to thank all the people who have helped me directly and indirectly including family members, lecturers, technical staff and friends.

I would like to thank my supervisors Mr. N.Nazurally, Dr B. Lalljee for their assistance during the project. I would like to thank Mr A.Ruggoo and Mr V.Bhoyroo for their advice for the project.

I am very grateful to the technical staff namely Miss Fadeela, Mrs Seetohul, Mrs Manisha, Mr Abhishek and Mrs Devina who supported me and helped me a lot during my practical sessions. I would like to thank Mr Shivajee Suntoo for his help that he provided me.

I would also thank my friends Sobrun Vashist, Raghoonundon Bhavesh, Parbutteea Vedvyas, Ateen Kumar Singh Allock and Sarvesh Bignah. A special thanks to my two dear friends Bhannoo Saulick and Priyanka Jawaheer.

And finally the ones, I thank the most my parents Mr Narainduth and Mrs Jaiwatee Jahazeeah and siblings for their support, help and understanding during this period.

Jahazeeah Yashveen

UNIVERSITY OF MAURITIUS

PROJECT/DISSERTATION DECLARATION FORM



Name:

Student ID:

Programme of Studies:

Module Code/Name:

Title of Project/Dissertation:

Name of Supervisor(s):

Declaration:

In accordance with the appropriate regulations, I hereby submit the above dissertation for examination and I declare that:

- (i) I have read and understood the sections on **Plagiarism and Fabrication and Falsification of Results** found in the University's "General Information to Students" Handbook (20..../20....) and certify that the dissertation embodies the results of my own work.
- (ii) I have no objection to submit a soft copy of my dissertation through the Turnitin Platform. I confirm that the hard copies and soft copy, submitted to the Faculty/Centre Registry, and the soft copy (main body, i.e, introduction up to the last Chapter) uploaded through Turnitin Platform are identical in content.
- (iii) I have adhered to the 'Harvard system of referencing' or a system acceptable as per "The University of Mauritius Referencing Guide" for referencing, quotations and citations in my dissertation. Each contribution to, and quotation in my dissertation from the work of other people has been attributed, and has been cited and referenced.
- (iv) I have not allowed and will not allow anyone to copy my work with the intention of passing it off as his or her own work.
- (v) I am aware that I may have to forfeit the certificate/diploma/degree in the event that plagiarism has been detected after the award.
- (vi) Notwithstanding the supervision provided to me by the University of Mauritius, I warrant that any alleged act(s) of plagiarism during my stay as registered student of the University of Mauritius is entirely my own responsibility and the University of Mauritius and/or its employees shall under no circumstances whatsoever be under any liability of any kind in respect of the aforesaid act(s) of plagiarism.

Signature:	Date:
------------	-------

Abstract

The study conducted below is about setting up a new aquaculture system in the south east part of Mauritius at Residence La Chaux at Mahebourg. 4 sites were selected for this analysis and they were compared in order to see which site is most suitable for the set up. Several test such as pH, salinity, phosphate nitrate and organic carbon in water and sediments. More important test that is heavy metal tests were carried out in water, sediments and fish samples. pH values of the samples ranged between 8.0 - 9.0 and salinity of the samples ranged between 28.0 to 35.0 ppt. The nitrogen, phosphorus and organic carbon content of the samples were higher. The value for nitrogen was 10.85- 15.61 mg/L. whereas the heavy metals content in the water, sediments and fish samples were high as compared to research work carried out. Only the concentration of cadmium was found in trace amount and the value was 0.0072 mg/L, which is it was found only in one sample. The contents of heavy metals in fish were lower than that of water and sediments. It can be concluded that the sites selected are suitable for the setup of aquaculture systems and hence more research work should be carried out to understand the ecosystem of the sites.

List of Abbreviations

% - percentage

AAS – Atomic Absorption Spectrum

Cr - Chromium

CuSO₄ – Copper Sulfate

FAO – Food And Agriculture Organisation

g – grams

 $H_2SO_4 - Sulfuric Acid$

HCl-Hydrochloric Acid

KCl – Potassium Chloride

L-Litres

M-Molar

mg/g – milli gram per gram

mg/g – milligram per litre

ml – millilitre

NaOH – Sodium Hydroxide

ppb – parts per billion

ppm - parts per million

ppt – parts per thousands

WHO – World Health Organization

1. Introduction

1.1. Introduction

This project is about identifying whether the proposed site for Barachois is a suitable one to launch an aquaculture project for the culture of crabs, and oyster. There are several factors around the sites that can have an impact on the identified sites. Some factors are soil erosion, presence of a river mouth and habitat around the barachois. These factors have impacts on sulfur content, phosphorus content, nitrogen content, carbon content and heavy metal content of water, sediment and fish that are present in the barachois. With a growth rate of 10 % per year, Aquaculture is growing very fast around the world and thus is contributing a lot to reduce the scarcity of food around the world (Ministry of Agro-Industry and Fisheries, 2007). The occurrence of new aquaculture system will help in reducing poverty by the formation of new job scopes (Republic of Indonesia, 2003). The introduction of an aquaculture system may have a good impact on the environment as it will improve the infrastructure of certain proposed site. The aquaculture sector is one which is reducing famine, malnutrition and meeting the energy needs of the world population. The aquaculture sector should ensure security for the food supply that it is providing for the population (Funmilola, 2016).

Fish in diets has many benefits as it adds many nutrients and minerals and also brings lots of advantages to human health. Aquaculture is the only natural way through which the population is able to meet the requirements for omega-3-polyunsaturated fatty acids (Varela, 2008). The aquaculture has provided many job opportunities and has reduced the ratio of unemployment. A large amount of fish produced through aquaculture is exported to developing countries (Finegold, 2008). Another prominent farming is ornamental farming. It may help in maintaining and preserving many rare species in the sea. This type of farming requires specialized trainings. It can also benefit to the economy and become a tourist attraction spot (Tlusty, 2004).

There are factors that are affecting aquaculture. Firstly, the price and availability of fish meal is increasing. Aquaculture itself is considered as a pollution causing agent and hence the byproducts of aquaculture may lead to an increase in nutrients in water and hence it may cause eutrophication. Other polluting factors may be due to oil spills, household discharge and agricultural pesticides. There is a group of people who are against the practice of aquaculture. However the objectives of aquaculture are to provide the proteins through fish at a reasonable price, provide new species and maintaining natural species. One aim is to support recreational fishing. Moreover it may encourage the recycling of organic waste of humans and livestock (Jhingran, 1987). There are several systems used for aquaculture namely water based system, land based, recycling system and integrated farming (Smith and Philips, 2001).

1.2. Hypothesis

To test whether the proposed site is an appropriate one where an aquaculture project can be implemented with respect to water quality, sediments and fish quality.

1.3. Aim

The aim of this investigation is to assess the quality of sediment, water and fish in view of a potential mariculture project from different sites at Barachois

1.4. Objectives

The Objectives are:

- To identify potential sites for a mariculture project and collect samples
- To evaluate the nutrients content such as nitrogen, phosphorus and carbon in water and sediments
- To test for heavy metals in water, sediments and fish samples
- To select appropriate sites to set up an aquaculture system.

2. Literature Review

2.1. Aquaculture

The alternative way to meet up the daily food requirement all around the world is Aquaculture (Fisheries.noaa.gov, 2018). Aquaculture is the new growing field which is giving a helping hand in the socioeconomic growth of many countries. There are several types of culture technologies like cages in open sea, in land culture, ponds, lakes, rivers, and barachois. Barachois culture is one popular culture that is growing in this sector. The barachois culture comprises mostly of oyster farming and crab farming. There are many sites that have been identified where aquaculture projects can be set up. A site, a barachois, to set up an aquaculture project was identified in the south east part of Mauritius, namely Residence La Chaux, Mahebourg. Thus test are to be carried out to investigate whether it is a potential site to set up the aquaculture system.

The identified site consists of 7 different barachois where 4 places were chosen for the analysis to be done.



Fig 1.1 site of sampling (Source: Google earth)

2.2.Site description

Site 1

Site 1 is one of the large ponds that are found in that location. The pond is surrounded by a barrier of rocks. On one side of the pond there is another large pond named site 3 and on another side, it meets the sea. A part of the pond is surrounded by land.

Site 2

Site 2 is a pond that is found in a remote place. The pond is surrounded by mangrove.

Site 3

Site 3 is another big pond which is found next to site 1. Next to the site, there is a river mouth.

Site 4

Site 4 is a small pond and found in the middle and surrounded by land. There is a lot of pollution around this site.

2.3. Erosion from agricultural land

Soil erosion is a lethargic impact that results in soil particles due to the activity of wind and water causing degradation in soil. This phenomenon is becoming more and more frequent around the world and is carrying away soil nutrients to rivers. Through rivers the nutrients are landing in the sea thus affecting the costal ecology. On agricultural lands, the use of pesticides, insecticides and plant nutrients are used. The excessive use of these agricultural medicines ends up in the sea through soil run off and also affects aquatic animals (Schultz, 2011).

2.4.Pollution

Pollution is defined as the introduction of substances by man into the aquatic environment, resulting in such deleterious effects which is harmful to living resources, are hazards to human health and cause obstruction in the marine environment (Waldichuk, 1974). There are several sources of pollution such as boat activities, disposal of waste, sewage and habitat. Through these types of pollution, the normal concentrations of certain heavy metals are exceeding the amount needed. According to Henry (2012), there is 20% Mercury, 8% Copper and 68% Lead entering the ocean.

2.5. River mouth

The river mouth is a place where there is deposition of sediments. These sediments consist of many nutrients, pesticides, insecticides. The run off of soils on upper land often end up in rivers. Rivers also bring waste to the river mouth which changes the salinity gradient (Kazungu, 2018).

2.6. Nitrogen cycle

Nitrogen cycle is a biogeochemical cycle that occurs in nature with respect to changes with nitrogen compounds. Nitrogen is an essential element for most biological processes. Nitrogen cycle comprises of Ammonification, Immobilization, Nitrogen fixation, Nitrification and Denitrification. According to researchers from Kiel Germany, nitrogen that are in the ocean, deposits there as a consequence of runoff from upper lands through rivers and thus relates terrestrial and marine nitrogen cycle (G. Capone, 2008).



Fig 1.2 Nitrogen cycle (Source: Research gate, Arrigo, 2005)

2.7. Phosphorus Cycle

Phosphorus is an important component of life (White and Dyhrman, 2013). Phosphorus is an important content for primary productivity in the aquatic environment (FROELICH et al., 1982). This nutrient helps phytoplankton to grow and maintain it and is regained upon decomposition of organic matter Phosphorus is found in sediments as phosphate salts (Sundby et al, 1992).



Fig 1.3. phosphorus cycle

(Source: Research gate, 2016)

2.8. Carbon cycle

The sea takes up more carbon than it releases to the atmosphere. Atmospheric carbon dioxide dissolves in sea water. Small photosynthetic plants, such as phytoplankton take up atmospheric carbon dioxide, and convert it in to organic carbon. Some organisms in the oceans, has the ability to transform carbon into rocks. Carbon enters into aquatic organisms in the form of organic carbon and calcium carbonate (Science Learning Hub, 2010).



Fig1.4. The Carbon cycle (Source: science learning hub)

2.9.The sulfur cycle

Sulfur is an element that gets involve in many biogeochemical reactions that have an impact on carbon cycle and oxygen cycles. Sulfur is an important element for the formation of lipids and eventually proteins (Hurtgen, 2012). As sulfur content increases in sediments, toxicity of sediments increases (Monika et al.., 2017). The sea gives a smell of rotten cabbage which shows that hydrogen sulfide and thus sulfur is present in the sea and mostly in sediments as it comes from decaying organism in the sea. The smell of hydrogen sulfide may affect the earth organisms as it is toxic (Science Daily, 2003).



Fig1.5. The sulfur cycle (Source: Lenntech)

2.10. Heavy metals

Heavy metals are needed in very small amount in living organisms in order to keep the body metabolism. Nevertheless when its level increases, heavy metals become toxic and may cause poisoning. Lead, Cadmium and Mercury are considered to be the most present in the environment (Lenntech, 2017). Rapid urbanization has direct impact on pollution and thus increases the amount of heavy metals in the aquatic environment (Afiza & Mohamed, 2012). Thus heavy metals from sea water penetrate into sediments (Wei Hsiang Tan et al., 2016).

2.10.1. Cadmium

Cadmium is known as a carcinogen and an agent that causes defects in new born (Royal society of Chemistry, 2017). Cadmium is found in a relatively low amount in nature especially in the sea (Mart and Nürnberg, 1986). Cadmium is relatively motile in the sea (Jerry M Neff, 2002).

2.10.2. Chromium

Chromium is a water soluble metal which dissolves in water from the atmosphere. Chromium then deposits on sediments. This element also gets incorporated in the tissues of the fish. This element has an immune toxic impact on aquatic organisms (Oana, 2006).

2.10.3. Copper

Copper is present in the water, sediment and marine organisms due to natural and anthropogenic copper. Copper is an essential micronutrient to both plants and animals (Schmidt, 1978).

2.10.4. Manganese

Manganese is present in the sea as nodules and about 30% is found on the sea bed. It is found mostly in the first 5 m of the sea bed and thus decreases at greater depths (Patrick, 2010).

2.10.5. Nickel

Nickel gets into the sea through rivers. Phytoplanktons, in the sea contain nickel. Agricultural fertilizers and lands often contain traces of nickel (Laevastu et al, 2015).

3.1. Site selection

Site selection is an exercise performed to obtain a representative piece of the environmental part of the remaining site to be analysed (Sampling and preparation for laboratory measurements, 2000). Before the analysis we need to have a review of the site that is been selected. For example previous analysis done at the site and projects those are ongoing there (Smodiš, Annareddy and Rossbach, 2003). For this particular analysis, a proposed site for barachois is selected situated in the south east coast of Mauritius known as residence La Chaux, Mahebourg. The location consists of 7 barachois and of which 4 sites is selected at random.

3.2. Sampling

3.2.1. Water sampling

In each barachois, three different spots were identified in a straight line. At each specific spot, 1L of water was collected in a de ionized bottle. Immediately after collection, the sample was put in an ice bag to preserve it and once in the lab the water sample is kept in the refrigerator at 4°C (Who.int, 2018).



3.2.2. Sediment collection

Sediments were taken at same site of water collection. The sample should be representative. The sediments were collected in polyethene bags using a corer. The upper 0-3 cm layer of sediments was taken for sampling. A mass of 500g of sediment was collected at each site for analysis (Smodiš, Annareddy and Rossbach, 2003).

3.2.3. Fish collection

Fish samples were collected by fishing or with nets in the barachois chosen for sampling of water and sediments. After the fish had been taken out of water, the samples were kept in crushed ice to prevent any chemical and biological damage (Fish collection and dissection for the purpose of chemical analysis of tissues, 2017).

3.3. Preparation of samples for testing

3.3.1. Water sample

Water samples were stored in the refrigerator at a temperature of 4 °C and the further analysis was done with the water sample (Sample Collection, Storage and Preservation, 2018).

3.3.2. Sediment

Trays were used to dry the sediments collected. Paper was first placed on the trays and then the sediments were spread on the trays. The sediments were left to air dry. From time to time the sediments were reversed to ensure complete dryness in the samples. After air drying for a few days, further processing of the samples was carried out. The samples were first crushed using a mortar and pestle and then passed through a sieve of 2mm to remove the big uncrushed particles and to obtain fine particles of the sediments. After processing the samples for analysis, the sediments were stored in jars (Weppi.gtk.fi, 2018).

3.3.3. Fish

The fish was descaled and the internal parts of the fish were removed (Nrm.se, n.d.). After descaling, the fish was cut into small pieces and was put in a freeze dryer to remove all the water content of the sample for long term storage. After freeze drying, the samples were kept in a refrigerator at 4°C (Unistelmedical.co.za, 2018).

3.4. Water tests

Temperature of water was measured in situ that is upon collection the temperature was measured using a thermometer (Marianydesigns.com, 2008).

3.4.1. pH of water

Water samples were removed from the refrigerator and let to stabilize to room temperature. A pH meter was used to calculate the pH. The pH meter was calibrated using pH buffer pH 7 and then pH 4. 10 of each water sample were measured in different test tubes. The probe of pH meter was dipped in each test tube and the pH of each water sample was recorded (pH of Salt Water, 2008).

3.4.2. Salinity of water

There are several ways to measure salinity. One way to measure salinity is by using electrical conductivity method. The electrical conductivity meter was calibrated with 0.01M of KCl. 10 ml of each water sample was measured in different test tubes. The probe was inserted in each test tube and the electrical conductivity was recorded. The probe was washed and wiped before inserting it in another test tube for analysis (Conductivity Theory and Practice, 2004).

3.4.3. Nitrates in water

An apparatus known as the Hanna meter was used to measure the amount of nitrates present in water. 6 ml of water sample was placed in the cuvette, closed and the cuvette was placed in the apparatus. The zero key was pressed and when the screen of the apparatus showed zero, the cuvette was removed and a packet of HI 93728-0 reagent was added to it. The cap was replaced and the cuvette was shook quickly for 10 seconds and then was shook gently for 50 seconds until all the reagents dissolved in the water. The cuvette was again placed in the apparatus and timer was pressed. After 4.3 minutes a value was displayed on the screen and it was noted.

3.4.4. Phosphate in water

Same as for nitrates, to calculate phosphate in water the same apparatus was used, the Hanna meter. Phosphate HR method was selected for the test. The cuvette was filled 10 ml of water and placed into the Hanna meter and zero was pressed. When the screen showed zero, the

cuvette was taken out and the packet of HI 937178-0 Phosphate HR reagent B followed by 10 drops of HI 93717A Molybdate reagent was added and the timer button was pressed and after 5 minutes the value was recorded.

3.4.5. Heavy metals in water

Water samples were prepared by addition of Aquaregia (25% concentrated nitric acid and 75% concentrated hydrochloric acid). To 50 ml of water sample, 15 ml of Aquaregia solution was added. After this digestion water samples were stored in polyethylene bottles in refrigerator at 4 °C for seven days (Radulescu et al., 2014).

3.5. Sediment analysis

3.5.1. Salinity analysis

To measure the salinity of the sediments electrical conductivity method was used. The sediment sample was prepared for the experiment. 5 g of each sample were measured in 100 ml conical flask. Then 25 ml of distilled water was added to each conical flask. A ratio 1:5 was used to add distilled water. After addition of distilled water, the conical flasks were placed on an orbital shaker for 30 mins. After the 30 mins, an electrical conductivity meter was used to measure the electrical conductivity and the values obtained were recorded (Conductivity Theory and Practice, 2004).

3.5.2. Determination of Total Nitrogen in sediments

3.5.2.1. Digestion

The digestion tube was taken and 0.5g of sediment was measured in each digestion tube followed by the addition of 1g of CuSO₄ and 15ml of concentrated H₂SO₄. The samples were next placed on the digestion rack at 380°C for 1 hour. After 1 hour, the samples were let to cool. After cooling, distilled water was added to each digestion rack, and was topped up to 100 ml in a 100 ml volumetric flask.

3.5.2.2. Distillation-

Boric acid was prepared and 5 ml of the acid was transferred to 100 ml conical flask followed by two drops of indicator. Then 5 ml of the digested sample pipetted and added to

the Markham distillation apparatus through the funnel. The digest was let slowly in the condenser and then 5 ml of NaOH was let slowly in the funnel. The 100 ml conical flask was put at the receiver. Approximately 10 ml of the extract was collected and a colour change occurred from pink to blue and the solution wash kept for titration (Taylor, 2001).

3.5.2.3. Titration

The retained solution was titrated against 0.01M HCL and the value obtained was recorded.

3.5.3. Determination of available phosphorus in sediments

3.5.3.1. Preparation of ammonium molybdate

12 g of powdered ammonium molybdate and 0.3 g of antimony potassium tartrate was dissolved in 600 ml distilled water in a 1000 ml volumetric flask. Then to this solution 148 ml of concentrated H_2SO_4 was added and the solution was made up to the mark of 1L with distilled water. This solution was further diluted by transferring 125 ml of the solution in another 1000 ml volumetric flask and was topped up with distilled water. This prepared solution was kept in a cool place.

3.5.3.2. Preparation of ascorbic acid

Powdered Ascorbic acid of mass 1.5 g was measured and a solution was made out of it by the addition of 100 ml distilled water in a 100 ml volumetric flask. Upon each use fresh solution was prepared.

3.5.3.3. Preparation of standard phosphate solution

Potassium Dihydrogen Orthophosphate was dried for one hour at a temperature of 105°C. The dry content was placed in a desiccator after drying. 1.099g of the powder was measured and put in a 250 ml volumetric flask and 1 ml of 36% m/m Hydrochloric acid was inserted to the volumetric flask. This followed a dilution by adding distilled water up to 250 ml. Five drops of toluene was added to the solution for storage. The standard phosphate solution was prepared. This was used to prepare other concentrations of phosphate solution. From the standard solution 10 ml was pipetted into a 100 ml volumetric flask and filled up to the mark with water. Then 10 ml of this solution was labeled A. Then different volumes of 0, 5, 10, 15, 20, 30 ml from A were transferred to 6 different 100 ml volumetric flask. To each volumetric

flask, 8 ml of Ammonium molybdate and 8 ml of Ascorbic acid was added and the solutions were made up to the mark of 100 ml with distilled water.

3.5.3.4. Extraction of phosphorus from sediments

Extraction of phosphate was done for this test. 5g of each sediment sample was measured in different 100 ml conical flask and 50 ml of 0.01M of H_2SO_4 was added to the sediments. The conical flasks were placed on the orbital shaker for 30 minutes. Then each conical flask was filtered and 5 ml of each extract were transferred to different 100 ml volumetric flask. 8 ml of Ascorbic acid and 8 ml of Ammonium molybdate were added to each extract and were made up to the mark with distilled water.

Both the standard phosphate solution and the extracts were passed through the spectrometer at 880 nm and the values obtained were noted.

3.5.4. Determination of organic carbon

3.5.4.1. Preparation of standard

15 g of sucrose was oven dried at 105°C for 2 hours and let to cool in the desiccator. Then 11.886 g of sucrose were used to make a solution. 0, 5, 10, 15, 20 and 25 ml of this prepared solution were added to 100 ml volumetric flask and made up to the mark. Then 2 ml of each solution were transferred to different beakers and let dried at 105 °C in an oven. This standard contained 0, 5, 10, 15, 20 and 25 mg of carbon. Then 10 ml of potassium dichromate was added to each and were dissolved in it. Concentrated sulfuric acid of 10 M was added to each in a fume hood and was allowed to cool. After cooling, 50 ml of Barium chloride was inserted to the solutions, it was swirled and let to deposit overnight and passed through spectrometer at 600 nm.

3.5.4.2. Sample preparation and analysis

For the sample preparation, 1 g of each sample was added to different 100 ml conical flask and 10 ml of potassium dichromate was added to it followed by the addition of 20 ml of sulfuric acid. The solution was left to cool down and then 50 ml of barium chloride was added and swirled. The suspension was let to settle overnight and the passed through spectrometer at 600 nm.

3.5.4.3. Heavy metals in sediments

Aquaregia is firstly prepared. Then 2.5g of sediment sample was measured in a conical flask and 15 ml of Aquaregia was added. The Aquaregia was added slowly to the sediments as it dissipates a lot of heat (Okoro et al., 2012). The samples were left to digest overnight. The samples were then filtered and topped with distilled water in 50 ml volumetric flask and stored in polyethylene bottles. The samples were passed through AAS (Atomic Absorption Analysis).

3.6. Fish test

3.6.1. Heavy metals in fish

3.6.1.1. Ashing of fish

Fish samples were prepared before heavy metal analysis. The fish samples that were freeze dried were used. 10 g of the small fish samples were measured in different crucibles. The crucibles were then placed into muffle furnace at 450°C for 8 hours. After this period of time, ashes of fish samples were obtained.

3.6.1.2. Digestion of ashes of fish

After ashing, 15 ml of Aquaregia were added to each sample and were let to digest overnight (Okoro et al., 2012). After digestion, the samples were filtered in 50 ml volumetric flask and made up to the mark. The samples were stored in poly ethylene bottles and analysed in the AAS (Atomic Absorption Analysis).

4. Results

4.1. Water sample

4.1.1. pH of water samples

Table 1: pH of water

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	mean	Standard
					deviation
Site 1	8.192	8.252	8.242	8.229	0.032
Site 2	8.216	8.478	8.616	8.437	0.203
Site 3	9.172	9.054	9.196	9.141	0.076
Site 4	8.16	7.722	9.062	8.315	0.683



Figure 1: pH of water

P value: 0.051

 H_{o} (Null Hypothesis) - There is significance difference between pH of water of different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative Hypothesis) – There is no significance difference between pH of water of different sites.

17

As the p-value is greater than 0.05, H_0 is rejected and we accept H_1 and conclude that there is no significance difference between the values of pH of water between different sites.

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean (ppt)	Standard
	(ppt)	(ppt)	(ppt)		deviation
Site 1	28.98	28.64	28.72	28.78	0.0316
Site 2	31.14	31.2	32.4	31.58	0.7072
Site 3	33.32	35.32	31.24	33.29	2.04
Site 4	35.3	34.64	33.42	34.45	0.9538

4.1.2. Salinity in water

Table 2: Salinity in water



Figure 2: Salinity in water

P value: 0.002

H_o (Null hypothesis) - significance difference in the salinity of water of different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – there is no significance difference in the salinity of water of different sites.

According to the p-value obtained which is less than 0.05, there is a significance difference in the salinity of water between different sites. Hence we accept the null hypothesis.

4.1.3. Nitrates in water

Table 3: Concentration of nitrates in v	vater
---	-------

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	Deviation
Site 1	8.2	7.9	16.46	10.85	4.858
Site2	15.14	14.46	16.36	15.32	0.963
Site 3	14.7	14.46	14.6	14.59	0.121
Site 4	14.94	16.22	15.66	15.61	0.642



Figure 3: Concentration of nitrates in water

P value: 1.51

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in nitrates in water between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative Hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in nitrates in water between different sites.

After Anova analysis, the p-value is 1.51 which is greater than 0.05 and therefore H_0 is rejected and H_1 is accepted. This shows that there is no significance between nitrates in water of different sites.

4.1.4. Phosphates in water

Table 4: Concentration of phosphate in water

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	Deviation
Site 1	11.2	5.32	4.34	6.95	3.71
Site2	12.94	11.56	13.28	12.59	0.911
Site 3	13.94	12.98	14.16	13.69	0.627
Site 4	4.98	6.04	5.28	5.43	0.546



Figure 4: Concentration of phosphate in water

P value: 0.002

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of phosphates in water between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of phosphates in water between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0.002, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of phosphates in water is significant.

4.1.5. Heavy metals in water

4.1.5.1. Cadmium

Table 5: Concentration of cadmium in water

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Sample 4	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Site 2	0	0	0	0	0	0
Site 3	0	0	0	0	0	0
Site 4	0	0	0	0	0	0

Cadmium was not obtained in the water samples as it is found in very little amount in the ecosystem.

4.1.5.2. Chromium

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Sample 4	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.02	0.012	0.029	0.014	0.0188	0.0085
Site 2	0.394	0.412	0.342	0.365	0.379	0.0364
Site 3	0.268	0.29	0.314	0.216	0.272	0.0230
Site 4	1.774	1.214	1.369	1.524	1.47	0.2892





Figure 5: Concentration of chromium in water

P value: 0

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Chromium in water between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Chromium in water between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Chromium in water is significant.
4.1.5.3. Copper

Table 7: Concentration of copper in water

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.057	0.061	0.054	0.05733	0.00351
Site 2	0.69	0.61	0.58	0.627	0.0569
Site 3	0.328	0.412	0.365	0.368	0.0421
Site 4	0.137	0.124	0.182	0.148	0.0304



Figure 6: Concentration of copper in water

P value: 0

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Copper in water between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Copper in water between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Copper in water is significant. 24

4.1.5.4. Manganese

Table 8: Concentration of manganese in water

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.048	0.056	0.051	0.0468	0.00404
Site 2	0.52	0.34	0.51	0.455	0.1011
Site 3	0.36	0.42	0.38	0.393	0.0306
Site 4	0.23	0.28	0.19	0.23	0.0451





Figure 7: Concentration of manganese in water

P value: 0

H_o (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Manganese in water between different sites.

H₁ (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Manganese in water between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_o is accepted and H₁ is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Manganese in water is significant.

4.1.5.5. Nickel

	Sample	Sample	Sample	Mean	Standard
	1	2	3	(mg/L)	deviation
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)		
Site 1	0.018	0.008	0.009	0.0125	0.00551
Site 2	0.043	0.053	0.048	0.0488	0.00500
Site 3	0.013	0.016	0.025	0.0183	0.0624
Site 4	0.314	0.36	0.41	0.366	0.04801

 Table 9: Concentration of nickel in water



Figure 8: Concentration of nickel in water

P value: 0

 H_o (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Nickel in water sample between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Nickel in water sample between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Nickel in water sample is significant.

4.2. Sediments

4.2.1. Sediment pH

Table 10: pH of sediments

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	mean	Standard
					deviation
Site 1	8.036	7.69	7.87	7.865	0.173
Site 2	7.72	7.682	7.756	7.719	0.037
Site 3	8.12	8.094	8.216	8.143	0.0643
Site 4	8.03	7.83	8.014	7.958	0.1111



Figure 9: pH of sediments

P value: 0.009

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of pH of sediments between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of pH of sediments between different sites. 27 As per p-value which is 0.009 which is less than 0.05, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of pH of sediments is significant.

4.2.2. Salinity of sediments

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean (ppt)	Standard
	(ppt)	(ppt)	(ppt)		deviation
Site 1	22.28	24.02	24.62	23.64	1.215
Site 2	34.4	33.52	30.22	32.71	2.204
Site 3	6.34	7.86	5.94	6.71	1.013
Site 4	14.32	21.56	13.9	16.59	4.306

Table 11: Salinity of sediments



Figure 10: Salinity of sediments

P value: 0

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Salinity of sediments between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Salinity of sediments between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Salinity of sediments is significant.

4.2.3. Available phosphorus in sediments

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/g)	(mg/g)	(mg/g)	(mg/g)	deviation
Site 1	0.55	0.889	0.49	0.6433	0.2151
Site 2	0.587	0.1744	0.426	0.3958	0.2080
Site 3	0.532	1.177	0.438	0.716	0.4023
Site 4	0.178	0.438	0.3032	0.306	0.1300

Table 12: Concentration of available phosphorus in sediments



Figure 11: Concentration of available phosphorus in water

P value: 0.243

 H_0 (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of available phosphorus in sediments between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of available phosphorus in sediments between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0.243 which is greater than 0.05, H_1 is accepted and H_0 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of available phosphorus in sediments is significant. 29

4.2.4. Total nitrogen

	Sample	Sample	Sample	Mean	Standard
	1	2	3	(mg/g)	Deviation
	(mg/g)	(mg/g)	(mg/g)		
Site 1	1.1984	1.2768	0.9856	1.1536	0.1507
Site 2	6.216	6.5027	5.891	6.203	0.3060
Site 3	3.452	4.5024	4.2448	4.0664	0.5475
Site 4	5.768	6.093	5.704	5.855	0.2086

Table 13:	Concentration	of total	nitrogen	in	sediments
-----------	---------------	----------	----------	----	-----------



Figure 12: Concentration of total nitrogen in sediments

P value: 0

 H_o (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Total nitrogen in sediment between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Total nitrogen in sediment between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Total nitrogen in sediment is significant.

4.2.5. Organic Carbon in sediments

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/g)	(mg/g)	(mg/g)	(mg/g)	deviation
Site 1	0.0007424	0.0001531	0.0002459	0.000380	0.000317
Site 2	0.0123	0.0143	0.0108	0.0125	0.00176
Site 3	0.00107	0.000877	0.000464	0.000804	0.000310
Site 4	0.00186	0.00397	0.00402	0.00328	0.00123





Figure 13: Concentration of organic carbon in sediments

P value: 0

 H_0 (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of organic carbon in sediment between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of organic carbon in sediment between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of organic carbon in sediment is significant.

4.2.6. Heavy metals in sediment sample

4.2.6.1.Cadmium

Table 15: Concentration of cadmium in sediments

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.014	0.001	0.002	0.00567	0.00723
Site 2	0	0	0	0	0
Site 3	0	0	0	0	0
Site 4	0	0	0	0	0



Figure 14: Concentration of Cadmium in sediments

P value: 0.218

 H_o (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Cadmium in sediments between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Cadmium in sediments between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0.218 which is greater than 0.05, H_0 is rejected and H_1 is accept and thus showing that the concentration of Cadmium in sediments is significant.

4.2.6.2.Chromium

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	1.327	1.678	0.425	1.1433	0.6464
Site 2	1.241	0.709	0.954	0.968	0.2663
Site 3	1.328	0.886	0.424	0.87933	0.4520
Site 4	1.557	2.446	3.021	2.341	0.7376

Table 16: Concentration of Chromium in sediments



Figure 15: Concentration of Chromium in sediments

P value: 0.039

 H_o (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Chromium in sediment between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Chromium in sediment between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0.039 which is less than 0.05, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Chromium in sediment is significant.

4.2.6.3.Copper

Table 17: Concentration of copper in sediments

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.026	0.033	0.014	0.0243	0.00961
Site 2	0.001	0.012	0.039	0.0173	0.01790
Site 3	0.004	0.015	0.018	0.0123	0.00737
Site 4	0.006	0.083	0.071	0.0533	0.04143



Figure 16: Concentration of copper in sediments

P value: 0.211

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Copper in sediment between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Copper in sediment between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0.211 which is greater than 0.05, H_0 is rejected and H_1 is accepted and thus showing that the concentration of Copper in sediment is significant.

4.2.6.4.Manganese

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.664	0.852	0.892	0.80	0.1217
Site 2	1.016	1.217	1.797	1.3433	0.4055
Site 3	0.258	0.241	0.27	0.256	0.0146
Site 4	0.001	0.004	0.002	0.00233	0.0015

Table 18: Concentration of manganese in sediments



Figure 17: Concentration of manganese in sediments

P value: 0

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Manganese in sediment between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Manganese in sediment between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Manganese in sediment is significant.

4.2.6.5.Nickel

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.145	0.154	0.111	0.1367	0.0227
Site 2	0.248	0	0.287	0.17833	0.1557
Site 3	0.251	0.256	0.656	0.388	0.2324
Site 4	0.674	0.895	1.855	1.141	0.2336



Figure 18: Concentration of nickel in sediments

P value: 0.003

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Nickel in sediment between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Nickel in sediment between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0.003 less than 0.05, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Nickel in sediment is significant.

4.3. Fish samples

4.3.1. Cadmium

Table 20: Concentration of cadmium in fish

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0	0	0	0	0
Site 2	0	0	0	0	0
Site 3	0	0	0	0	0
Site 4	0	0	0	0	0

P value: 0

Cadmium is found in very trace amount and thus it was not found in the samples.

4.3.2. Chromium

Table 21: Concentration of Chromium in fish

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.459	0.365	0.421	0.415	0.0473
Site 2	0.313	0.356	0.475	0.381	0.0839
Site 3	0.038	0.045	0.026	0.0363	0.00961
Site 4	0.595	0.495	0.369	0.4863	0.11325



Figure 19: Concentration of Chromium in fish

P value: 0

 H_o (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Chromium in fish between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Chromium in fish between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Chromium in fish is significant.

4.3.3. Copper

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.3	0.345	0.456	0.367	0.08029
Site 2	0.093	0.068	0.058	0.073	0.01803
Site 3	0.058	0.067	0.05	0.0583	0.00850
Site 4	0.074	0.068	0.057	0.06633	0.00862





Figure 20: Concentration of copper in fish

P value: 0

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Copper in Fish between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Copper in Fish between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Copper in Fish is significant.

4.3.4. Manganese

Table 23: Concentration of manganese in fish

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.024	0.034	0.045	0.03433	0.0105
Site 2	0.039	0.068	0.054	0.05367	0.0145
Site 3	0.019	0.054	0.048	0.04033	0.0187
Site 4	0.019	0.013	0.008	0.01333	0.00551



Figure 21: Concentration of manganese in fish

P value: 0.033

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Manganese in fish between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Manganese in fish between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0.033 less than 0.05, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Manganese in fish is significant.

4.3.5. Nickel

Table 24: Concentration of nickel in fish

	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	Mean	Standard
	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	(mg/L)	deviation
Site 1	0.013	0.026	0.016	0.0183	0.006807
Site 2	0.013	0.023	0.038	0.0246	0.012583
Site 3	0	0	0	0	0
Site 4	0	0	0	0	0



Figure 22: Concentration of nickel in fish

P value: 0.005

 H_{o} (Null hypothesis) – There is a significance difference in the concentration of Nickel in Fish between different sites.

 H_1 (Alternative hypothesis) – There is no significance difference in the concentration of Nickel in Fish between different sites.

As per p-value which is 0.005 less than 0.05, H_0 is accepted and H_1 is rejected and thus showing that the concentration of Nickel in Fish is significant.

5. Discussion

5.1. Water

5.1.1. Analysis of pH of seawater between different sites

The pH of sea water is supposed to be alkaline in the range of 8.1 (Morgan, 2018). Due to the absorption of carbonates and bicarbonates in sea water, the pH of water may change and become alkaline, that is a pH of 8.6. The survival of certain marine species may become difficult if the pH falls to less than 5.0 or climbs to more than 9.0 (Ohrel and Register,2006). An increase in the pH can be observed as rocks and minerals also dissolve in sea water (Renforth, 2017). Carbon dioxide from the atmosphere dissolves in sea water and thus makes the pH of water to become acidic. This process of ocean acidification is increasing very fast. This process of acidification affects the aquatic life such as urchins and molluscs whereas some species are able to adapt to the change in pH. Corals are also affected by the decrease in pH as their growth is limited due to this phenomenon (Bennett, 2017). According to the results obtained, the pH of water in the different sites is in the range of 8.1 to 8.6 and it gives an indication that the pH is in line with the range as discussed above. Except for Site 3, the pH of water sample was 9.141, which is relatively high value as compared to the other sites. Hence this may affect some species found in that site. In reference to the results obtained, there was no sign of acidification of sea water.

5.1.2. Analysis of salinity of seawater between different sites

The range of salinity of sea water can be said to be in the range of 34 to 36 ppt. There are places where there is less rainfall and thus due to warm winds there is evaporation of water leaving the salt. This process causes the water to become more saline and the salinity may rise up to 38 ppt. in places where there is frequent rainfall, water is diluted and therefore salinity decreases up to 30ppt (Ocean Salinity, 2010). The sites that were chosen for sampling were near a river mouth. The presence of the river mouth could be a reason for the low salinity among the sites (Subramaniam, 2017). However, salinity in site 3 was high because the site is found in the middle and only when the sea rises that water gets in. So the water remains stagnant and it evaporates causing the salinity to be high that is 34.45 ppt (Sutton, 2010).

5.1.3. Analysis of Nitrates and Phosphates in seawater between different sites

According to Harvey (2009), the normal nitrates and phosphate content in sea water is supposed to be 10 mg/L. From the result in table 3.1.3, they range of Nitrates obtain in this study was 10.85 mg/l to 15.61 mg/L which is higher from the range provided above. Site 3 has a value of 14.59 mg/L which is high because of the presence of a river mouth near the site. Agricultural runoffs that occur on upper lands get into the river and finally end up in the sea. This causes an increase in the Nitrates concentration in site 3. The high ratio of Nitrates in site 3 affects the Nitrates concentration in site 1. Site 1 has a concentration of Nitrates of about 10.85 mg/L. Site 1 and Site 3 are separated by a barrier of rocks with small openings in between and nitrates form site 3 gets into site 1. As a result, there is an increase in the Nitrates concentration in site 1. However as compared to site 3, site 1 has a relatively low Nitrates concentration. This is due to the site location. Site 1 is located in a position where there is tidal action (Fatema et al, 2015). Thus the Nitrates are distributed between the sea and the site. Site 2 and Site 4 have a high Nitrates concentration. This can be explained as the sites are situated at places where there is habitation. The sites are been polluted by the habitants. For the concentration of Phosphates, Site 3 has the highest concentration of Phosphates giving the evidence that a river mouth is nearby. Same activity as nitrates occurs for Phosphate between Site 1 and Site 3. Phosphates from Site 3 get into Site 1 increasing the level of Phosphate in Site 1 that is 6.95 mg/L. The value of Phosphate for Site 2 is 12.59 mg/L and hence giving a sign that the area is polluted due to the presence of habitat. However, Site 4 has a normal Phosphate level and thus this site shows that it has a normal Phosphate level (Adesuy et al, 2015).

5.1.4. Analysis of heavy metals in sea water between different Sites

5.1.4.1. Cadmium

Cadmium is found in very little amount in seawater (Mullin and Riley, 1954). The range of cadmium present in seawater is 0.0002 mg/L that shows that it is present in trace amount (Talbot, 1984). The results show that there is no trace of cadmium in the water samples taken at each site. This shows that Cadmium is found in very little amount in seawater.

5.1.4.2. Chromium

Chromium occurs in sea water in the concentration range of 0.00024 mg/L to 0.00064 mg/L. Chromium gets into the sea water stream through mineral weathering activities, river line and also through atmospheric activities (Geisler and Schmidt, 1991). According to the results, the values obtained is too high as compared to the range provided above. This increase can be explained by the following activities such as pollution of the atmospheric pollution of the industrial outlet and also through runoff from the upper lands (Oana, 2006). All the sites have a high concentration for chromium.

5.1.4.3. Copper

Copper enters the marine environment through many natural and anthropogenic processes. The entrance of copper ions in the marine environment can be due to human activities as man uses copper a lot in their daily life. Weather actions and other biological reactions can contribute to the increase in copper concentrations. The approximate concentration of cooper in seawater should be 2.5x10-4 mg/L (Blossom, 1987). Copper has a positive effect on biological activities and also enhance antioxidant defenses in organisms (Lewis et al..., 2016). The results give an indication that there is a high concentration of copper in the identified sites. The high level of copper is good for the sites.

5.1.4.4. Manganese

Manganese is essential in both humans and animals in little amount. However, greater concentrations can be harmful to health. Manganese is present in high concentrations in the ocean (University of Gothenburg, 2009). The range of value for manganese in seawater is 0.003mg/L to 0.008mg/L. As per the result obtained, the values are relatively high. Site 2, 3

and 4 has a high value of range 0.23 mg/L to 0.455 mg/L. It can be harmful to aquatic animals and ultimately affecting humans.

5.1.4.5. Nickel

According to a research conducted in the black sea, the range for which nickel was present in water was between 2.0×10^{-6} to 1.31×10^{-4} mg/L (Laevastu and Thompson, 1991). According to Lenntech, the range for nickel is sea water was identified to be 0.2-8 mg/L. As compared to the results for Laevastu and Thompson, the values obtained for nickel concentration in water is high. This difference can be due to location of area and due to pollution of the area. But according to Lenntech, the values are between the range.

5.2. Sediments

5.2.1. Analysis of pH of sediments between different sites

Carbon dioxide gas dissolves in sediment pores that cause the pH to increase (Taylor et al, 2014). Due to buffering organisms that result in acidification of the ocean, the pH of the sediments decreases (Herlihy and Mills, 1986). There has been a chronic toxicity growth in the marine environment due to the use of pharmaceuticals and personal care products. According to the study by Singare and others, the range of pH obtained was 5.1 to 7.2 (Singare et al, 2011). Based on the results obtained, the pH of the sediments was higher of range 7.7 to 8.2. The high pH indicates that there is less carbon dioxide that dissolves in the sites. The increase in salinity may be due to the dissolved rocks and minerals that has deposited at the bottom in the sediments (Renforth, 2017).

5.2.2. Analysis of salinity of sediments between different sites

The major parameters for climate change are ocean salinity and heat content. Fresh water fluxes and melting of ice has great effect on salinity content (Ivchenko, 2010). The salinity range of sediments for a normal site could be in the range of 30 ppt to 33 ppt. For places where the river outlets meet the ocean the salinity for sediments can be in the range of 6 - 12 ppt (Priya et al, 2016). For the values obtained for site 2, it is in range with normal site salinity that is 32.71 ppt. For site 3, the value obtained is in range with the salinity of the river outlet that is 6.71 ppt. Site 1 has a low value for salinity that is 23.64 as it is situated next to site 3 and hence site 3 has an influence on site 1 there is exchange of water between

these two sites. Another reason for the low salinity in sediments in site 1 is due to ocean currents. Ocean currents wash away the sediments of the site which ultimately leads to a low salinity (Deep Ocean Currents, 2018). Site 2 and 4 has a low salinity because it is found in an enclosed area and due to rainfall. Rainfall makes the water to become dilute and therefore salts from the sediments diffuse into the water resulting in a decrease in the salinity factor of the sediments. This process is known as precipitation (Katsaros and Buitner, 1968).

5.2.3. Analysis of Available Phosphorus, Total nitrogen and Organic carbon in sediments between different sites

According to a study carried out, the recommendable concentration of Available Phosphorus, Total nitrogen and Organic carbon are 0.00373mg/g, 0.09914 mg/g and 0.00442 mg/g. Aquatic plants requires micronutrients such as nitrogen and phosphate for growth (Valdes and Real, 2004). As the coastal biodiversity provides a big space for the exchange of inland and aquatic origins, the aquatic environment is very fluctuate and the nutrient content also fluctuates (Gascón, et al, 2006). Excess micronutrients may cause eutrophication. Nutrients are introduced in the sea through sources of sewage, Agricultural waste water as well as agricultural runoff. With the action of time, the nutrients accumulate in the sediments and could be reused under different environmental different. Sediments providing an internal source of nutrients can be important as it may provide nutrients from sediments to water and results in algal growth in summer periods when the amount of dissolved dissolved oxygen is low (Hou et al, 2013). As per the results obtained, values for Available phosphorus, Total nitrogen and Organic carbon are higher than the range provided above. It shows that the amount of Micronutrients has increased in the Aquatic environment. And hence the facts produced above are explained.

5.2.4. Analysis of heavy metals in Sediments between different Sites

5.2.4.1. Cadmium

According to Förstner research, the value obtained for cadmium was 0.25 mg/L - 0.30 mg/L. Sediments are known as a pollutant and potential source of contaminants in the marine environment. Metals are not always fixed by sediments and are recycled through biological and chemical agents (Förstner, 1986). Heavy metals pollution in the Aquatic environment is a world problem and the situation is becoming worst as it is entering the food

chain (Mwashote, 2003). Cadmium is a metal which can travel for long distances from its emission source and gets into many organisms easily such as molluscs (WHO, 2010). For the results obtained, cadmium was found only in site 1. According to the range obtained, the concentration of cadmium obtained is very low and can be concluded that cadmium is found in trace amount in the site.

5.2.4.2. Chromium

Chromium that is classified as heavy metal is used industrially around the world. And chromium enters the ecosystem as a byproduct in water, sediments and air through sewage and industrial discharge (Rifkin et al, 2004). The range of Chromium in the Nyanza gulf sediments is 0.0221 - 0.0339 mg/L (Mwamburi, 2016). The transport and availability of chromium can have an impact on Cr (VI) reduction (Wang et al, 2013). As per results, the concentration of Chromium is high. This is due to the presence of river outlet which brings sewage and hence causes a high amount of chromium.

5.2.4.3. Copper

Low copper concentrations encourage high sulfide concentrations which help in controlling and maintaining the amount of dissolved copper in sediments. The amount of copper recommended in sediments is 0.012 - 0.10 mg/L (Teasdale et al, 1996). Most input of copper in the marine environment is through river outlets. Marine organisms are able to deal with only a certain amount of copper. The results that were gained are of range 0.0123-0.0533. Therefore the results are between the limits and it can be assumed that the amount of copper is good for the sites (Blossom 1987).

5.2.4.4. Manganese

The amount of manganese found in the sediments is about 0.05 mg/L (Abesser and Robinson, 2010).Manganese is presence has become a global concern as it is entering the environment in greater concentrations especially the marine environment. Manganese gets in water and accumulates in the sediments (Li P et al, 2014). Manganese is essential in sediments and may be found in abundance in the flora and it is also difficult to identify its abundance (Montalvo et al, 2014). The concentration of manganese is different in each site. Site 1, 2 and 3 have the highest concentration for manganese that is 0.256 - 1.4 mg/L. This provides the evidence that manganese is found in abundance in the nature especially in 48

sediments. Where as in site 4, the concentration is relatively low because the site is found in an enclosed area and it gets less access to the sea.

5.2.4.5. Nickel

The nickel concentration in sediments can be in the range of 0.0156-0.0831 mg/L. Nickel can get into the marine ecosystem through different sources like pollution through fossil fuels, geological weathering and by industrial bodies through water sources (Gwiazda, 2011). The concentrations obtained in the sediments are too high and it gives the evidence that the sites are polluted. The river outlet present near the sites may be a source which brings a lot of nickel downwards and thus cause an increase in the concentration of Nickel.

5.3. Analysis of heavy metals in Fish samples between different Sites

5.3.1. Cadmium in fish

According to FAO, the permissible concentration of cadmium in fish is 2 - 20 mg/L (Fao.org, 2018). The results obtained indicate that there was no cadmium present in the samples. However, the AAS (Atomic Absorption Spectrum) is not too sensitive to detect if cadmium is present in smaller amount.

5.3.2. Chromium in Fish

Chromium exists in two states: Chromium (III) and Chromium (VI). Chromium (III) is not to below the level of 7.5 mg/L and Chromium (IV) is not toxic below the level of 75 mg/L. (Fao.org, 2018). Through human activities such as mining, improper waste management and fossil fuel usage, the environment especially the marine society is affected (Aslam and Yousafzai, 2017). The results obtained are lower in all the sites than the limits mentioned above. This shows that the area is less polluted by chromium.

5.3.3. Copper in Fish

The amount of cooper that is required to be in a fish is 0.005 - 0.02 mg/L (Solomon, 2009). Copper occurs naturally in the marine environment. Copper is required in trace amount for metabolism in living organisms. Copper can be toxic just above its limits to Aquatic organisms and may cause reversible reactions (Woody and O'Neal, 2012). Minerals found in soils and weathered rocks causes an increase in copper concentration (Blossom, 1987). The concentration of copper obtained in the samples is relatively high and it can be 49

concluded that due to climatic change there is an increase in weathering actions causing the breakdown of rocks and increasing the concentration of copper in the marine environment.

5.3.4. Manganese in Fish

Manganese occurs naturally in sediments and water. Manganese exists in two forms in the marine society: Mn (II) and Mn (IV). Manganese is an important content for animals and plants. There are many anthropogenic sources of manganese namely: sewage discharge, combustion of fossil fuels and also through the use of pesticides in agricultural land. It gets into the sea through rivers and through water and sediments in aquatic organisms (Howe et al, 2005). Manganese may be present in the concentration of 0.2-8.4 mg/L in fish samples (Rajkowska and Protasowicki, 2012). The results shows that manganese is in very little amount in the fish samples. This shows that the organisms get only the required amount of manganese.

5.3.5. Nickel in Fish

Nickel is a transition metal that is essential for aquatic organisms. Pollution such as heavy metals has increased a lot and is accumulating in water, sediments and marine organisms. Heavy metals are not degradable. The normal range of nickel that should be present in fish is below 0.2 mg/L (Todorova, 2015). With respect to the results obtained, the concentration of nickel is in line with the range. Thus it shows that there is not much pollution in fish species regarding nickel. The concentration of nickel is a bit high in site 2 and hence it can be concluded that this high value is due to pollution.

6. Conclusion

From the analysis conducted above, it can be concluded that pH, salinity of water and sediments were almost better for the place that the sites are situated. However, there was an anomaly in site 3 and to identify the reasons for this anomaly further research for the pH of water should be carried out on the site. pH of sediments was almost constant in every site. The salinity of water was also almost constant in every site. Salinity of Sediments was different for every site because it depends on the location of the site selected and the factors that are influencing change in the salinity content.

The phosphate, nitrate and nitrogen content were high in both water and sediments. There are several factors such as agricultural runoff, presence of the river mouth and habitats around the coastal region responsible for this high content. It has both positive and negative impact of having high content for these variables. Due to the high presence of this content, processes like eutrophication may occur and hence may cause other variables like oxygen; light and carbon dioxide become a limiting factor. Organic carbon concentration was a bit low for the sites in the sediments. One plausible reason for this low content may be that the sites have not been developed and there is no culture of marine species and decaying matters in the sites.

Heavy metals were present in water, sediments and fish samples. Cadmium was not found in some samples. Chromium concentration was a bit high in the samples. Copper, manganese and nickel were found in little amount in the sites. A more sensitive Atomic Absorption Spectrum (AAS) should be used for the analysis of heavy metal.

According to the study conducted, all the sites are suitable places where Aquaculture systems can be set up. However further detailed analysis should be conducted so as to understand the ecosystem in the barachois.

7. Recommendation

- A test should be conducted on the biodiversity content on the different sites. This will enable the investor to understand the ecology and the availability of foods for the aqua cultured species.
- A test on zooplankton and Phytoplankton should be carried out in the sites. This is important as it is an essential part of the food web.
- A study should be conducted to monitor the growth of corals in the barachois and especially the study should be conducted on zooxanthellae in order to explore the biodiversity of the sites.

8. References

1. Afiza, S. S. & Mohamed, C. A. R. (2012). Elements Content in Otolith as Pollution Indicator for Cultured Sea Bass (Lates calcarifer) of Malaysia. Journal of Environmental Protection, 3, 1689-1703.

Available at: <u>http://file.scirp.org/Html/8-6701667_26022.htm</u> Last assessed: 13 February 2018

2. A. T. Herlihy and A. L. Mills 1986. The pH regime of sediments underlying acidified waters

Last Assessed: 4 April 2018

- 3. Adeola Alex ADESUYI, Valerie Chinedu NNODU, Kelechi Longinus NJOKU, Anuoluwapo, JOLAOSO 2015. Nitrate and Phosphate Pollution in Surface Water of Nwaja Creek, Port Harcourt, Niger Delta, Nigeria. Environmental Impact Assessment, Environment Department, Shell Petroleum Development Company, Port Harcourt, Nigeria Department of Environmental Management, Faculty of Environmental Sciences, Nnamdi Azikiwe University, Awka, Anambra state, Nigeria 3Environmental Biology Unit, Cell Biology and Genetics Department, University of Lagos, Akoka, Lagos, Nigeria. Last assessed: 2 April 2018
- Agbebi, Funmilola, Kibogo, Andrew, Ngirinshuti, Leonce, Mindje, Mapendo 2016. Potentials of Aquaculture Production to Food Security in Rwanda. IIFET 2016 Scotland conference proceedings. Last assessed: 9 March 2018
- 5. Benjamin M. Mwashote 2003. Levels of Cadmium and Lead in Water, Sediments and Selected Fish Species in Mombasa, Kenya. Kenya Marine and Fisheries Research Institute, P. O. Box 81651 Mombasa, Kenya Last Assessed: 5 April 2018
- 6. Conductivity Theory and Practice. 2004. *Radiometer Analytical SAS, pp.10-15.* Available at: <u>http://www.analytical-</u> chemistry.uoc.gr/files/items/6/618/agwgimometria_2.pdf

Last assessed: 14 February 2018

- 7. C. RADULESCU, I.D. DULAMA, C. STIHI, I. IONITA, A. CHILIAN, C. NECULA, ELENA DANIELA CHELARESCU. 2014. DETERMINATION OF HEAVY METAL LEVELS IN WATER AND THERAPEUTIC MUD BY ATOMIC ABSORPTION SPECTROMETRY. University of Targoviste, Targoviste, Romania Last Assessed: 15 February 2018
- Charles Barnham PSM & Alan Baxter. 1998. Condition Factor, K, for Salmonid Fish. State of Victoria, Department of Primary Industries Last Assessed: 15 February 2018
- 9. Ceri Lewis, Robert P. Ellis, Emily Vernon, Katie Elliot, Sam Newbatt and Rod W. Wilson 2016. Ocean acidification increases copper toxicity differentially in two key marine invertebrates with distinct acid-base responses.

Last assessed: 3 April 2018

10. Claus-Dieter Geisler and Diether Schmidt 1991. An overview of chromium in the marine environment.

Last Assessed: 3 April 2018

- 11. Corinna ABESSER and Ruth ROBINSON 2010. Mobilisation of iron and manganese from sediments of a Scottish Upland reservoir. School of Geography and Geosciences, University of St Andrew, St Andrews, KY16 9AL, UK Last Assessed: 6 April 2018
- Carlos Montalvo, Claudia A. Aguilar, Luis E. Amador, Julia G. Cerón, Rosa M. Cerón, Francisco Anguebes & Atl V. Cordova2014. Metal Contents in Sediments (Cd, Cu, Mg, Fe, Mn) as Indicators of Pollution of Palizada River, Mexico. <u>http://dx.doi.org/10.5539/ep.v3n4p89</u>
 Lost Assessed: C April 2018.

Last Assessed: 6 April 2018

- Carol Ann Woody & Sarah Louise O'Neal 2012. Effects of Copper on Fish and Aquatic Resources. Fisheries Research and Consulting Anchorage, Alaska Last assessed: 7 April 2018
- 14. C.Finegold 2008. The Importance of Fisheries and Aquaculture to Development. Last assessed: 9 March 2018

- 15. David S. Valdes and Elizabeth Real 2004. Nitrogen and Phosphorus in water and sediments at Ria Largartos coastal lagoon, Yucantan, Gulf of Mexico. Last Assessed: 5 April 2018
- 16. Deep Ocean Facts 2018.17 Factors Affecting Ocean Salinity.

Last Assessed: 5 April 2018

- 17. Dekun Hou, Jiang He, Changwei Lü, Ying Sun, Fujin Zhang, and Khureldavaa Otgonbayar 2013. Effects of Environmental Factors on Nutrients Release at Sediment-Water Interface and Assessment of Trophic Status for a Typical Shallow Lake, Northwest China Last Assessed: 5 April 2018
- **18. Ewa Szarek-Gwiazda Anna Czaplicka-Kotas Ewa Szalińska 2011**. Background Concentrations of Nickel in the Sediments of the Carpathian Dam Reservoirs (Southern Poland). <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/clen.201000114</u>

Last Assessed: 6 April 2018

19. ERIK RIFKIN, PATRI CK GWINN, EDWARD BOUWER 2004. *CHROMIUM and Sediment Toxicity*

Last Assessed: 5 April 2018

- FROELICH, P., BENDER, M., LUEDTKE, N., HEATH, G. and DeVRIES, T. 1982. Marine phosphorus cycle. American journal of science, p.474. Last Assessed: 5 February 2018
- 21. Fish collection and dissection for the purpose of chemical analysis of tissues.
 2017. [ebook] p.2.
 Available at: <u>https://www.ehp.qld.gov.au/water/monitoring/sampling-manual/pdf/biological-assessment-fish-collection-and-the-dissection-for-the-purpose-of-chemical-analysis-of-tissues.pdf</u>
 Last Assessed: 11 February 2018
- 22. Fao.org. 2018. Water quality and fish health Zdenka Svobodov, Richard Lloyd, Jana M chov and Blanka Vykusov(1993). http://www.fao.org/docrep/009/t1623e/T1623E03.htm

Last Assessed: 6 April 2018

- 23. Frances Solomon 2009. Impacts of copper on Aquatic Ecosystems and Human Health. Environmental communities.
 Last Assessed: 7 April 2018
- 24. Funge-Smith, S. Phillips, M.J. 2001. Aquaculture systems and species. Aquaculture in the Third Millennium. Technical Proceedings of the Conference on Aquaculture in the Third Millennium, Bangkok, Thailand, 20-25 February 2000. pp. 129-135. NACA, Bangkok and FAO, Rome.

Last Assessed: 8 march 2018

- 25. G. Capone, D. 2008. *The Marine Nitrogen Cycle*. 3rd ed California, Los Angeles, Calif: University of Southern California, p.186
 Last Assessed: 4 February 2018
- 26. Ganesh Subramaniam 2017. Is salinity low at mouth of river?.Last Assessed: 2 April 2018
- Hurtgen, M. (2012). *The Marine Sulfur Cycle, Revisited*.Last Assessed: 12 February 2018
- 28. Hussein K Okoro, Olalekan S Fatoki, Folahan A Adekola, Bhekumusa J Ximba and Reinette G Snyman. 2012. A Review of Sequential Extraction Procedures for Heavy Metals Speciation in Soil and Sediments. Open Access Scientific Reports Last Assessed: 15 February 2018
- H. W. Harvey 2009. Nitrate in the Sea. Journal of the Marine Biological Association of the United Kingdom.
 Last Assessed: 2 April 2018
- 30. Henry, A. 2012. Nepa.gov.jm.Last Assessed: 1 March 2018

- 31. Job Mwamburi 2016. Chromium Distribution and Spatial Variations in the Finer Sediment Grain Size Fraction and Unfractioned Surficial Sediments on Nyanza Gulf, of Lake Victoria (East Africa) Last Assessed: 5 April 2018
- **32.** Jerry M Neff 2002. Cadmium in the Ocean.

Availableat:https://www.researchgate.net/publication/283375482_Cadmium_in_the_OceanLast Assessed: 14 February 2018

- J. B. MULLIN and J. P. RILEY 1954. Cadmium in Sea-water. Department of Oceanography, university Liverpool.
 Last assessed: 2 April 2018
- 34. Jennifer Bennett (NOAA) 2017. Ocean Acidification. The Ocean Portal Team Last Assessed: 30 March 2018
- 35. K. Todorova , I. Velcheva , V. Yancheva , S. Stoyanova , S. Petrova , E. Georgieva 2015. Effects of nickel and its combination with other heavy metals (cd, pb, zn) on common carp (Cyprinus carpio Linnaeus, 1785). Trakia Journal of Sciences, Vol. 13, Suppl. 2, pp 324-328, 2015 Last Assessed: 7 April 2018
- 36. Kazungu, J. 2018. *Vliz.be* Last Assessed: 5 March 2018
- 37. K. Fatema , W. M.W. Omar and M. M. Isa 2015. Effects of Tidal Events on the Water Quality in the Merbok Estuary, Kedah, Malaysia. Department of Fisheries, University of Dhaka, Dhaka-1000, School of Biological Sciences, University Sains Malaysia, 11800 Penang, Malaysia Last assessed: 2 April 2018

- 38. K.L.Priya, P.Jegathambal, E.J.James 2016. Salinity and suspended sediment transport in a shallow estuary on the east coast of India. Regional Studies in Marine ScienceVolume 7, September 2016, Pages 88-99 Last assessed: 05 April 2018
- **39.** Kristina Katsaros and Konrad J.K.Bueitner 1968. Influence of rainfall on temperature and salinity of ocean surface. Department of Atmospheric Sciences, University of Washington, Seattle.

Last Assessed: 5 April 2018

40. L. Mart and W. Nürnberg 1986. *The distribution of cadmium in the sea*. Institute Applied Physical Chemistry, Nuclear Research Establishment (KFA) , D-5170 Juelich (Federal Republic 0/ Germany).

Available at: https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-0348-7238-6_5

Last Assessed: 14 February 2018

41. Lenntech. (2017). *Heavy metals* Available at: <u>https://www.lenntech.com/processes/heavy/heavy-metals/heavy-metals.htm</u>

Last Assessed: 13 February 2018

- 42. Ministry of Agro-Industry and Fisheries (Fisheries Division) (2007). Potential for Sustainable Aquaculture Development in Mauritius. Board of Investment Last assessed: 16 February 2018
- **43.** Monika Rajkowska and Mikołaj Protasowicki 2012. Distribution of metals (Fe, Mn, Zn, Cu) in fish tissues in two lakes of different trophy in Northwestern Poland.

Last Assessed: 7 April 2018

44. M.Tulsty 2004. Ornamental Aquaculture Small scale of production does not automatically mean small scale of impact. OFI Journal 46.
 Last assessed: 9 March 2018

45. Monika Cieszynska-Semenowicz, JustynaRogowska, WojciechRatajczyk, JoannaRatajczyk, LidiaWolska (2017). Toxicity studies of elemental sulfur in marine sediments. Medical University of Gdansk, 80-204 Gdansk, 23 Debowa Str, Poland. at:

Available

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S1001627917300628

Last Assessed: 13 February 2018

- 46. Marianydesigns.com. 2008. Water Monitoring Testing: Temperature. Last Assessed: 12 February 2018
- 47. Maria Gomez-Taylor. 2001. Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen in Water and Biosolids by Colorimetry with Preliminary Distillation/Digestion. Automated U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Water Office of Science and Technology Engineering and Analysis Division (4303) 1200 Pennsylvania Ave. NW Washington, D.C. 20460 Last assessed: 15 February 2018
- **48.** Neal Blossom 1987. Copper in the Ocean Environment. American Chemet Corporation, P.O. Box 1160, East Helena, MT 59635. Last assessed: 3 April 2018
- **49**. Nrm.se. (n.d.). Manual for collection, preparation and storage of fish. Last assessed: 11 February 2018
- **50.** NORRIS W. RAKESTRAW and FRANK B. LUTZ (1993). ARSENIC IN SEA WATER. The Biological Bulletin 65, no. 3. Available at: https://www.journals.uchicago.edu/doi/pdfplus/10.2307/1537214 Last Assessed: 13 February 2018
- 51. **Ocean salinity 2010.** Science learning hub. Last Assessed: 30 March 2018
- 52. Ohrel, R. L.; Register, K. M 2006. pH and Alkalinity. Voluntary Estuary Monitoring Manual.

Last Assessed: 30 March 2018
53. P.D. Howe, H.M. Malcolm, S. Dobson 2005. manganese and its compounds: environmental aspects. Centre for Ecology & Hydrology, Monks Wood, United Kingdom.

Last Assessed: 7 April 2018

- 54. Popa Melania Oana 2006. Chromium Impact on Marine Ecosystem. USAMVB Timisoara, Calea Aradului 119, 200645 Timisoara.
 Last Assessed: 14 February 2018
- 55. pH of Salt Water. 2008. p.4.Last Assessed: 12 February 2018
- 56. Peter Taylor, Anna Lichtschlag, Matthew Tobermana, Martin D.J. Sayer, Andy Reynolds, Toru Sato and Henrik Stahl 2014. Impact and recovery of pH in marine sediments subject to a temporary carbon dioxide leak. International Journal of Greenhouse Gas Control

Last Assessed: 4 April 2018

- **57. Phil Sutton 2010**. Ocean salinity. Last Assessed: 2 April 2018
- **58. Popa Melania Oana 2006.** *Chromium impact on marine ecosystem.* USAMVB Timisoara, Calea Aradului 119, 200645 Timisoara

Last assessed: 3 April 2018

- 59. Pravin U. Singare1, Manisha P. Trivedi1, Ravindra M. Mishra1 2011. Assessing the Physico-Chemical Parameters of Sediment Ecosystem of Vasai Creek at Mumbai, India. Last Assessed: 4 April 2018
 - 60. REPUBLIC OF INDONESIA (2003). Sustainable Aquaculture Development for Food Security and Poverty Reduction Project. Asian Development Bank.
 Last assessed: 16 February 2018
- 61. Renforth, P. 2017. Preventing climate change by increasing ocean alkalinity. Eos, 98.
 Last Assessed: 30 March 2018

- 62. R.L Varela 2008. The importance of Aquaculture in the European diet International. Academy of Gastronomy.
 Last assessed: 9 March 2018
- **63.** Schultz, J. 2011. Environmental Effects of Erosion on Water Quality. Last Assessed: 28 February 2018
- 64. Sundby, B., Gobeil, C., Silverberg, N. and Mucci, A. (1992). Limnology and Oceanography. [ebook] p.1129.
 Last Assessed: 12 Feb. 2018
- 65. Science daily. (2003). Hydrogen Sulfide, Not Carbon Dioxide, May Have Caused Largest Mass Extinction. Penn state.
 Available at: <u>https://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2003/11/031104063957.htm</u>

Last assessed: 13 February 2018

66. SAMPLING AND PREPARATION FOR LABORATORY MEASUREMENTS. (2000). [ebook] MARSSIM, p.1.
Available at: <u>https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2015-06/documents/marssim_chapter7.pdf</u>
Last Assessed: 10 Feb. 2018

- 67. Smodiš, B., Annareddy, V. and Rossbach, M. 2003. Collection and preparation of bottom sediment samples for analysis of radionuclides and trace elements. [ebook] Austria: IAEA, p.2. Available at: <u>https://www-pub.iaea.org/MTCD/publications/PDF/te_1360_web.pdf</u> Last Assessed: 10 Feb. 2018
- 68. Sample Collection, Storage and Preservation. 2018. [ebook]
 Available at: <u>https://www.rmbel.info/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/Sample-Collection-and-Preservation-List.pdf</u>

Last Assessed: 10 February 2018

69. S. Gascón, D. Boix, J. Sala, X.D. Quintana 2006. Organic carbon and nutrient (P, N) concentrations of water and sediment in several aquatic environment types of a Mediterranean coastal wetland (Empordà Wetlands, NE Iberian Peninsula). Institute of Aquatic Ecology and Department of Environmental Sciences,

University of Girona, Campus de Montilivi, Facultat de Ciències, 17071 Girona, Spain.

Last Assessed: 5 April 2018

- **70.** Sam Morgan 2018. *What Is the pH of Salt Water?*. Scientific American. Last Assessed: 30 March 2018
- 71. Sonia Aslam and Ali Muhammad Yousafzai 2017. Chromium toxicity in fish. Department of Zoology Islamia College Peshawar, Pakistan Last assessed: 7 April 2018
- 72. Science Learning Hub 2010. *The Ocean and the Carbon Cycle*. Curious Mind, New Zealand Government. The University of Waikato

Available at: <u>https://www.sciencelearn.org.nz/resources/689-the-ocean-and-the-</u> carbon-cycle

Last Assessed: 18 March 2018

- 73. S.wang and J.H.Choi. (2013). Stimulating fate and transport of chromium in saturated sediments. Volume 37, Issues 1-2, January 2013, pages 102-111.
 Last Assessed: 8 April 2018
- 74. Taivo Laevastu and Thomas G. Thompson 1991. The Determination and Occurrence of Nickel in Sea Water, Marine Organisms, and Sediments. Department of Oceanography, University of Washington, Seattle Last assessed: 4 April 2018
- 75. Teasdale P, Apte S, Batley G and Ford P 1996. The behaviour of copper in sediments and waters of Macquarie Harbour, western Tasmania. Supervising Scientist Report 111

Last Assessed: 5 April 2018

- 76. Ukmarinesac.org.uk. 1995. Toxic substance profile: Lead.
 Available at: <u>http://www.ukmarinesac.org.uk/activities/water-quality/wq8_4.htm</u> Last assessed: 14 February 2018
- 77. Unistelmedical.co.za. 2018. Sampling, Transport and Storage of Samples. Last Assessed: 11 February 2018

- 78. University of Gothenburg 2009. Manganese Damages Immune Response In Marine Animals, Research Finds Last assessed: 3 April 2018
- 79. V. O. Ivchenko , N. C. Wells, D. L. Aleynik, and A. G. P. Shaw 2010. Variability of heat and salinity content in the North Atlantic in the last decade. National Oceanography Centre Southampton, University of Southampton Waterfront Campus, European Way, Southampton SO14 3ZH, UK 2Scottish Association for Marine Science, Scottish Marine Institute, Oban, PA37 1QA, UK Last Assessed: 5 April 2018
- 80. V. G. Jhingran 1987. Introduction to Aquaculture. United Nations Development Programme Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations Nigerian Institute for Oceanography and Marine Research Project raf/82/009 Last Assessed: 8 March 2018
- **81. V.Talbot** (1985). *Relationship between Cadmium concentrations in seawater and those in the mussel Mytilus edulis*.volume 85, issue 1, pp 51-54

Last Assessed: 8 April 2018

- 82. Waldichuk, M. 1974. *IMS-FORTH: About IMS*. Last Assessed: 1 March 2018
- 83. White, A. and Dyhrman, S. 2013. *The marine phosphorus cycle*. Available at: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3659303/ Last Assessed: 8 Mar. 2018
- Wei Hsiang Tan, Rohana Tair, Siti Aishah Mohd Ali, Asdalifah Talibe, Fatin Sualin & Carolyn Payus (2016). Distribution of Heavy Metals in Seawater and Surface Sediment in Coastal Area of Tuaran, Sabah. Faculty of Science and Natural Resources, University Malaysia Sabah, Malaysia.
 Available at: <u>http://www.transectscience.org/pdfs/vol3/no1_2/31-2_114_122.pdf</u> Last Assessed: 13 February 2018
- 85. World Health Organisation(WHO) 2017. Arsenic.
 Available at: <u>http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs372/en/</u>
 Last Assesed: 14 February 2018

86. Who.int. 2018. Cite a Website - Cite This For Me. [online]
Available at: <u>http://www.who.int/water_sanitation_health/dwq/2edvol3d.pdf</u>
Last Assessed: 10 Feb. 2018

87. Weppi.gtk.fi. 2018. Sample Preparation and Analysis.Last Assessed: 11 February 2018

88. World Health Organization(WHO) 2010. EXPOSURE TO CADMIUM: A MAJOR PUBLIC HEALTH CONCERN.

Last Assessed: 5 April 2018